
  

Page 1 of 4 

 

     
Silicon Valley Clean Energy Authority 

Board of Directors Meeting 

Wednesday, August 14, 2019 

7:00 pm 

 

Cupertino Community Hall 

10350 Torre Avenue 

Cupertino, CA 
 

DRAFT MINUTES 
 
Call to Order 
 
Chair Abe-Koga called the meeting to order at 7:06 p.m.  
 
Roll Call 
 
Present: 
Chair Margaret Abe-Koga, City of Mountain View 
Vice Chair Howard Miller, City of Saratoga 
Director Javed Ellahie, City of Monte Sereno  
Director Marico Sayoc, Town of Los Gatos  
Director Nancy Smith, City of Sunnyvale 
Director Rod Sinks, City of Cupertino 
Director Courtenay Corrigan, Town of Los Altos Hills 
Director Susan Ellenberg, County of Santa Clara  
Alternate Director Anthony Eulo, City of Morgan Hill  
 
 
Absent: 
Director Jeannie Bruins, City of Los Altos 
Director Bob Nuñez, City of Milpitas 
Director Liz Gibbons, City of Campbell  
Director Fred Tovar, City of Gilroy 
 
Public Comment on Matters Not Listed on the Agenda 
No speakers. 
 
Consent Calendar 

 
Chair Abe-Koga opened public comment for those wishing to pull an item from the consent calendar. 
No speakers. 
Chair Abe-Koga closed public comment for those wishing to pull an item from the consent calendar. 
 
MOTION: Director Ellenberg moved and Alternate Director Eulo seconded the motion to approve the 
Consent Calendar. 
 
The motion carried unanimously with Directors Bruins, Gibbons, Nuñez and Tovar absent.  
 

1a) Approve Minutes of the June 12, 2019, Board of Directors Meeting 
1b) Receive May and June 2019 Treasurer Reports 
1c) Approve Human Resources Policy 5, Paid Time Off Cash-Out Option Policy 

1d) Receive Rate Update Effective August 1, 2019 

Item 1a

SILICON VALLEY
CLEAN ENERGY



  

Page 2 of 4 

 

1e) Adopt Resolution to Authorize the Chief Executive Officer to Execute Master Agreements with 
NRG Power Marketing, LLC, Wellhead Power Exchange, LLC, and DTE Energy Trading, Inc. 
and to Amend Approved Master Agreement with TransAlta Energy Marketing (US) Inc. 

1f)  Approve Time Extension and Authorize Chief Executive Officer to Execute Second 
Amendment to Agreement with Calpine Energy Solutions, LLC 

1g) Authorize the Chief Executive Officer to Execute Agreement with Richards, Watson & Gershon 
for Legal Services 

1h) Authorize the Chief Executive Officer to Execute Amended Agreement Increasing the Not-to-
Exceed Amount for Accounting Services with Maher Accountancy 

1i) Receive Decarbonization Programs Update 
1j) Executive Committee Report 
1k) Audit Committee Report 
 

Regular Calendar 
  
 
2) CEO Report (Discussion) 
 
CEO Girish Balachandran introduced the item by addressing the materials at the dais, and initiated a 
sparkling cider toast for SVCE’s California Energy Commission award of $6 million grant money for 
electric vehicle charging structures. CEO Balachandran introduced new SVCE staff members Community 
Outreach Specialist Colleen McCamy, and Associate Data Analyst Rebecca Fang; both provided brief 
comments. CEO Balachandran provided brief comments on the Regulatory and Legislative Update 
included in the CEO report. 
 
Chair Abe-Koga opened public comment. 
No speakers. 
Chair Abe-Koga closed public comment. 
 
3) Approve 2020 Time-of-Use Rate Transition for Residential Customers (Action) 

Director of Account Services and Community Relations Don Bray presented a PowerPoint presentation 
and responded to Board member questions.  
 
Chair Abe-Koga opened public comment. 
Bruce Karney, Mountain View resident, commented on the time-of-use rate program proposal and 
questioned if the PG&E modeling tool that predicts cost will be accurate for solar customers without 
storage the same way it is for people who do not have solar. Karney commented his belief that the E1 
rate category will go away.  
 
Director of Account Services and Community Relations Bray responded to Karney’s inquiry regarding the 
PG&E modeling tool.  
 
Chair Abe-Koga closed public comment. 
 
Director Ellahie requested information on cost savings during the time of day affecting the duck curve. 
 
MOTION: Director Corrigan moved and Director Sinks seconded the motion to confirm SVCE’s 
participation in the Time-of-Use Transition as of October 1, 2020, and confirm that SVCE will offer bill 
protection for the first 12 months following implementation. 
 
The motion carried unanimously with Directors Bruins, Gibbons, Nuñez, and Tovar absent. 
 
 
4) Proposed FY 19-20 Operating Budget (Discussion) 
 

Item 1a



  

Page 3 of 4 

 

Director of Finance and Administration Don Eckert presented a PowerPoint presentation and responded 
to Board member questions. 
 
Chair Abe-Koga opened public comment. 
No speakers. 
Chair Abe-Koga closed public comment. 
 
Chair Abe-Koga left the meeting at 8:15 p.m. and Vice Chair Miller presided over the remainder of the 
meeting. 
 
Board members discussed the reserves target and Alternate Director Eulo cautioned against building too 
much reserve; CEO Balachandran noted a discussion would be brought back to the Board in the first 
quarter of 2020. Director Sinks requested staff help the Board understand the impact some actions have 
and how quickly reserves could disappear. 
 
Vice Chair Miller summarized comments from the Board which included the following: 
 
1. Human Resources Parameters 
A need for on-site; 
Market based element; 
Discussion of benefits, pay, reviewing SVCE’s policies, help in hiring, and diversity; and, 
Feeling the organization is big enough, SVCE probably needs more focus and attention in the HR 
professions. 
 
2. Account services 
The Board fully understands there is a big goal on direct access (DA), but the Board would like some 
money/time introspection into marketing and other opportunities in addition to DA. 
 
3. Request for Cost/Margin of service of residential versus commercial customers (introspection) 
 
4. Reserves 
Request for more discussion about how SVCE is going to tail off of budget reserve growth; 
The organization is under a lot of unknowns and board members would feel more comfortable with money 
in the bank; and,  
Suggestions for the 2020-21 budget cycle about potentially buying a building, more programs, and taking 
less money from customers. 
 
 
5) Reach Codes Update (Discussion) 

 
Director of Decarbonization and Grid Innovation Programs Aimee Bailey and Account Services Manager 
John Supp presented a PowerPoint presentation; staff responded to Board member questions. 
 
Vice Chair Miller opened public comment. 
Bruce Karney, Carbon Free Mountain View, commented on the organizations which he is a member of, 
and noted they would be interested in helping with the support of implementation of reach codes in 
member agencies. Karney suggested staff work as closely and communicate as frequently as possible 
with activist groups. Karney announced a meeting at the Quinlan Center in Cupertino of the Youth 
Climate Activists, and encouraged board members to attend. 
 
Bryan Mekechuk, resident of Monte Sereno, provided feedback on what was said at the Monte Sereno 
council meeting, volunteered to help with outreach to other member agencies, and encouraged board 
members engage and involve youth commissions. 
 
Vice Chair Miller closed public comment. 
 

Item 1a



  

Page 4 of 4 

 

Vice Chair Miller summarized Board comments that Directors are doing what they can in terms of 
engagement, and staff is doing an exceptional job in helping member agencies. 
 
6) Finance and Administration Committee Report (Discussion) 

 
Vice Chair Miller reported the Finance and Administration Committee met and discussed the proposed FY 
2019-20 Operating Budget, discussed Human Resources Policy 5, Paid Time Off Cash-Out Option 
Policy, and expansion of the legal services contract. The next Finance and Administration Committee is 
scheduled for September 3rd. 
 
Vice Chair Miller opened public comment. 
No speakers. 
Vice Chair Miller closed public comment. 
 
7) Legislative Ad Hoc Committee Report (Discussion) 
 
Director Sinks reported the Legislative Ad Hoc Committee met July 9th to discuss priority bills and recent 
events in the 2019 legislative session. July 12th was the start of summer recess and the deadline for bills 
to pass through the required policy committees in the second house. Bills under discussion included 
those considering centralized procurement, such as AB 56, as well as bills touching on Integrated 
Resource Planning, the CCA Code of Conduct, defining the Provider of Last Resort and Diversity in CCA 
procurement. Committee members reviewed the progress of bills of interest and thanked those who 
contacted Senator Jerry Hill for his opposition vote on AB 56.  The Legislative Ad Hoc committee will 
reconvene on August 27th to plan for the remainder of the session, which ends September 13th. 
 
 
Board Member Announcements and Direction on Future Agenda Items 
 
Director Ellahie announced SVCE Accounts Manager John Supp would be presenting on reach codes 
October 2, 2019 at  7:30 a.m. at the Los Gatos morning rotary. Director Ellahie announced the Los Gatos 
Rotary Claws for Cause fundraiser September 7th at the Los Gatos Lodge and encouraged anyone who 
may be interested in attending contact him for details. 
 
Alternate Director Eulo invited Board members to cook with induction cooktops, and shared his 
experience. 
 
Director Corrigan commented the difficulty in finding a large induction cooktop. 
 
Director Smith announced the Sunnyvale City Council approved Sunnyvale’s Climate Action Plan 2.0. 
Director Smith shared highlights of the plan, and noted she would send a link of the final version through 
staff. 
 
Adjourn 
 
Chair Abe-Koga adjourned the meeting at 9:25 p.m. 
 
 

Item 1a



  

Page 1 of 2 

 

     
Silicon Valley Clean Energy Authority 

Board of Directors Special Meeting 

Wednesday, August 14, 2019 

5:30 pm 

 

Cupertino Community Hall 

10350 Torre Avenue 

Cupertino, CA 
 

DRAFT MINUTES 
 
Call to Order 
 
Chair Abe-Koga called the meeting to order at 5:32 p.m.  
 
Roll Call 
 
Present: 
Chair Margaret Abe-Koga, City of Mountain View 
Vice Chair Howard Miller, City of Saratoga 
Director Javed Ellahie, City of Monte Sereno  
Director Marico Sayoc, Town of Los Gatos  
Director Nancy Smith, City of Sunnyvale 
Director Rod Sinks, City of Cupertino 
Director Courtenay Corrigan, Town of Los Altos Hills 
Director Jeannie Bruins, City of Los Altos (participating by teleconference from 1711 Larkellen Lane  
Los Altos, CA 94024) 
Director Susan Ellenberg, County of Santa Clara  
Director Yvonne Martinez Beltran, City of Morgan Hill (participating by teleconference from 17295 
Markross Ct, Morgan Hill, CA 95037) 
 
 
Absent: 
Director Liz Gibbons, City of Campbell 
Director Bob Nuñez, City of Milpitas 
Director Fred Tovar, City of Gilroy 
 
 
Public Comment on Matters Not Listed on the Agenda 
No speakers. 
 
Public Comment on Closed Session 
No speakers. 
 
The Board convened to Closed Session in the Community Hall Kitchen at 5:34 p.m. 
 
Convene to Closed Session (Community Hall Kitchen) 
Public Employee Performance Evaluation 
Title: Chief Executive Officer 
 
Conference with Labor Negotiator  
Agency Representative: Margaret Abe-Koga, Chair, Board of Directors 
Unrepresented Employee: Chief Executive Officer 

Item 1b

SILICON VALLEY
CLEAN ENERGY



  

Page 2 of 2 

 

 
Conference with Legal Counsel – Existing Litigation 
Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(1) 
Name of Case:  In re Pacific Gas and Electric Company, Debtor, United States Bankruptcy Court, 
Northern District of California, San Francisco Division, Case No. 19-30088 
 
Director Martinez Beltran joined the meeting via teleconference during closed session. 
 
Director Corrigan arrived at 5:46 p.m. 
 
The Board returned to the Council Chambers at 7:02 p.m. with Directors Gibbons, Nuñez and Tovar 
absent. 

 
Report from Closed Session 
No report. 

 
Adjourn 
Chair Abe-Koga called the regular board meeting to order immediately following the Board’s return from 
closed session at 7:06 p.m.  
 
 
 
 

Item 1b



Item 1c

July 2019 Treasurer Report

MAHER ACCOUNTANC Y 1101 FIFTH AVENUE " SUITE 200 " SAN RAFAEL, CA 94901

R

5
3 ACCOUNTANTS’ COMPILATION REPORTe.
.aC5

R<3
R

Board of Directors
Silicon Valley Clean Energy Authority

Management is responsible for the accompanying financial statements of Silicon Valley Clean
Energy Authority (a California Joint Powers Authority) which comprise the statement of net
position as of July 31, 2019, and the related statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in net
position, and the statement of cash flows for the period then ended in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. We have performed a
compilation engagement in accordance with Statements on Standards for Accounting and
Review Services promulgated by the Accounting and Review Services Committee of the
AICPA. We did not audit or review the accompanying statements nor were we required to
perform any procedures to verify the accuracy or completeness of the information provided by
management. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion, conclusion, nor provide any assurance
on these financial statements.

Management has elected to omit substantially all of the note disclosures required by accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America in these interim financial
statements. Silicon Valley Clean Energy Authority’s annual audited financial statements include
the note disclosures omitted from these interim statements. If the omitted disclosures were
included in these financial statements, they might influence the user’s conclusions about the
Authority’s financial position, results of operations, and cash flows. Accordingly, these financial
statements are not designed for those who are not informed about such matters.
We are not independent with respect to the Authority because we performed certain accounting
services that impaired our independence.

San Rafael, CA
September 3, 2019

TEL 415.459.1249
4I5-459 - 5406
www.mahercpa.com

FAX
WEB

1



1 

 

 

TREASURER REPORT 

Fiscal Year to Date 
As of July 31, 2019 

 
(Preliminary & Unaudited) 

Issue Date: September 11, 2019 

 

Table of Contents 

Page  

Summary            2-3  
 
Statement of Net Position            4 
 
Statement of Revenues, Expenses & Changes in Net Position      5 
 
Statement of Cash Flows          6-7 
 
Actuals to Budget Report           8-9 
 
Monthly Change in Net Position          10 
 
Personnel Report            11 
 
Investments Report            12 
 
Customer Accounts            13 
 
Weather Statistics            14 
 
Accounts Receivable Aging Report         15 
   
 
 
 
 

Item 1c

July 2019 Treasurer Report

SILICON VALLEY
CLEAN ENERGY



2 

 

Item 1c

July 2019 Treasurer Report

SILICON VALLEY CLEAN ENERGY AUTHORITY
Financial Statement Highlights ($ in 000's)

Financial Highlights for the month of July 2019:
Note: SVCE is expected to finish the year well ahead of budget due to favorable rate changes and lower than budgeted power supply cost.

SVCE operations resulted in a positive change in net position for the month of $9.5 million and year-to-date change in net position of $39.9 million.
July revenue of $30.7 million accounted for 359 GWh in net retail consumption.
Year-to-date operating margin is $48.4 million and $14.4 million above budget.
SVCE is above the minimum cash reserve target with 133 expense coverage days and is financially stable.

Retail GWh sales for the month were 6 GWh above budget.
Year-to-date energy sales are on target.
July weather was normal compared to the 15-year average.

Power Supply costs are 7% below budget year-to-date.
Power supply costs for the month were on target for the month.
Joint Long-Term PPA RFO was issued in May from SVCE and MBCP. A short-list of suppliers was selected by July.
Favorable adjustments for December through March power supply costs were recognized based on updated settlements from CAISO.

Decarbonization and Grid Innovations

>

o
o
o

>

o
o

>

o
o
o

>

The Programs Roadmap was approved by the Board of Directors in December 2018.
The Board has approved ~$3 million of project specific budgets for Programs.
Programs continue to ramp up.

o
o
o

Investing/Financing>

SVCE currently has a $35 million line of credit.
SVCE is investing ~90% of available funds with a year-to-date return of $1.0 million.

o
o

Amended
BudgetChange in Net Position Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June July Aug Sept Total

Actual 8,092 953 1,947 (4,819) (523) 4,026 4,650 7,917 8,186 9,449 39,877 29,584

Amended
BudgetPower Supply Costs Apr May July SeptOct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar June Aug Total

Energy & REC's
Capacity
CAISO Charges
NEM Expense
Charge/Credit (IST/Net Rev)

14,735 13,930 12,890
1,082

18,224
1,554
1,768

(287)
2,064

14,103
1,596

12,080
1,308

(804)

12,019
1,484

(1,036)
(154)

14,084
1,620

16,003
2,053

16,653
2,738

144,721
15,332

4,068
985 912
798 1,043 438 917 280 654 10
74 (82) (242)

3,383
(146) (81) 260 324 585 251

569 1,089 497 516 455 809 2,045 309 11,736
Net Power Costs 17,161 16,892 17,551 23,323 16,968 13,019 12,769 17,053 21,079 20,295 176,108 234,330

Amended
BudgetOther Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June July Aug Sept Total

Capital Expenditures
Energy Programs

2 6 7 3 20 2001 1
37 3 1 3 16 59 71 74 36 300 5,640

Amended
BudgetLoad Statistics - GWh Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June July Aug Sept Total

Retail Sales Actual
Retail Sales Budget

323 318 354 336 299 311 307 305 347 359 3,259
3,936323 318 354 336 322 302 308 310 328 353 345 337 3,936



3 

 

   
 

 

  
 

  
 

Working Capital $118,025,722

Current Ratio 4.2                    

Operating Margin 22%

Expense Coverage Days 133                   

Expense Coverage Days with LOC 176                   

Long-Term Debt $0

Total Accounts 271,097            

Opt-Out Accounts (July) 39                     

Opt-Up Accounts (July) 9                       

Other Statistics and Ratios

Item 1c

July 2019 Treasurer Report

Retail Sales - YTDRetail Sales - Month
35.0 230.0 224.530.7 30.4 223.729.5
30.0

220.0
25.0

t/i </>
£ 210.00

I 200.0

§ 20.0

115.0 195.5£
10.0

190.0
5.0

180.00.0
FY16/17 FY16/17Actual Budget Actual Budget

O&M - Month O&M - YTD
26.0 25.2 250.0

205.025.0 185.524.1 200.0
24.0 157.3

t/1

£ 150.0o

I 100.0
123,0

122.0 21.3£
21.0

50.0
20.0

0.019.0
FY16/17Actual BudgetFY16/17Actual Budget



4 

  

Current Assets

  Cash & Cash Equivalents 101,108,295$         

  Accounts Receivable, net of allowance 23,716,782             

  Accrued Revenue 19,159,916             

  Other Receivables 248,762                 

  Prepaid Expenses 3,012,101               

  Deposits 2,255,634               

  Restricted cash - lockbox 5,000,000               

Total Current Assets 154,501,490           

Noncurrent assets

  Capital assets, net of depreciation 156,476                 

  Deposits 129,060                 

Total Noncurrent Assets 285,536                 

Total Assets 154,787,026           

Current Liabilities

  Accounts Payable 674,096                 

  Accrued Cost of Electricity 34,188,169             

  Accrued Payroll & Benefits 302,742                 

  Other accrued liabilities 360,020                 

  User Taxes and Energy Surcharges due to other gov'ts 922,421                 

  Supplier Security Deposits 28,320                   

Total Current Liabilities 36,475,768             

Net investment in capital assets 156,476                 

Restricted for security collateral 5,000,000               

Unrestricted (deficit) 113,154,782           

  Total Net Position 118,311,258$         

NET POSITION

SILICON VALLEY CLEAN ENERGY AUTHORITY

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

As of July 31, 2019

ASSETS

LIABILITIES

Item 1c

July 2019 Treasurer Report



5 

  
 
 

OPERATING REVENUES

  Electricity Sales, Net 223,735,368$   

  GreenPrime electricity premium 786,769           

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES 224,522,137     

OPERATING EXPENSES

  Cost of Electricity 176,108,397     

  Staff Compensation and benefits 2,734,501        

  Data Management 2,849,240        

  Service Fees - PG&E 960,612           

  Consultants and Other Professional Fees 1,222,170        

  Legal 342,068           

  Communications & Noticing 365,210           

  General & Administrative 830,072           

  Depreciation 42,002             

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 185,454,272     

    OPERATING INCOME(LOSS) 39,067,865      

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

  Interest Income 933,769           

  Financing costs (129,096)          

TOTAL NONOPERATING EXPENSES 804,673           

CHANGE IN NET POSITION 39,876,538      

  Net Position at beginning of period 78,434,720      

  Net Position at end of period 118,311,258$   

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES

October 1, 2018 through July 31, 2019

AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

Item 1c

July 2019 Treasurer Report



6 

   
 

 
 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

  Receipts from electricity sales 222,255,469$   

  Receipts from wholesale sales 579,940           

  Supplier security deposits 28,320             

  Tax and surcharge receipts from customers 4,278,954        

  Energy settlements received 5,794,370        

  Deposits and collateral received 13,558,737      

  Payments to purchase electricity (183,934,004)   

  Payments for staff compensation and benefits (2,699,465)       

  Payments for data manager fees (2,857,771)       

  Payments for PG&E service fees (862,995)          

  Payments for consultants and other professional services (1,190,588)       

  Payments for legal fees (329,144)          

  Payments for communications and noticing (398,613)          

  Payments for general and administrative (1,051,386)       

  Payments of deposits and collateral (1,758,101)       

  Return of security deposits to suppliers (585,000)          

  Tax and surcharge payments to other governments (4,394,440)       

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 46,434,283      

CASH FLOWS FROM NON-CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES

  Interest and related expense payments (208,937)          

Net cash provided (used) by non-capital financing activities (208,937)          

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED 

  FINANCING ACTIVITIES

    Acquisition of capital assets (14,160)            

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED 

  FINANCING ACTIVITIES

    Interest income received 933,769           

Net change in cash and cash equivalents 47,144,955      

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 58,963,340      

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period 106,108,295$   

SILICON VALLEY CLEAN ENERGY AUTHORITY

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

October 1, 2018 through July 31, 2019

Item 1c

July 2019 Treasurer Report



7 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Operating Income (loss) 39,067,865$     

Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash

  provided (used) by operating activities

    Depreciation expense 42,002             

    Revenue reduced for uncollectible accounts 1,128,254        

    (Increase) decrease in net accounts receivable (1,183,887)       

    (Increase) decrease in other receivables (162,501)          

    (Increase) decrease in accrued revenue (2,228,555)       

    (Increase) decrease in prepaid expenses (1,804,414)       

    (Increase) decrease in current deposits 11,800,636      

    Increase (decrease) in accounts payable (46,442)            

    Increase (decrease) in accrued payroll & benefits 111,453           

    Increase (decrease) in energy settlements payable 483,968           

    Increase (decrease) in accrued cost of electricity (479,472)          

    Increase (decrease) in accrued liabilities 360,020           

    Increase (decrease) in taxes and surcharges due to other governments (97,964)            

    Increase (decrease) in supplier security deposits (556,680)          

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 46,434,283$     

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO NET

CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

SILICON VALLEY CLEAN ENERGY AUTHORITY

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

October 1, 2018 through July 31, 2019

Item 1c

July 2019 Treasurer Report



8 
 

FYTD FY 2018-19

FYTD Amended Amended % Budget

REVENUES & OTHER SOURCES Actual Budget $ % Budget Spent

Energy Sales 223,735,368$      223,087,289$      648,079$            0% 281,890,000$      

GreenPrime Premium 786,769              543,489              243,280              45% 630,000              

Other Income -                      75,000                (75,000)               -100% 100,000              

Investment Income 933,769              700,617              233,152              0% 850,000              

TOTAL REVENUES & OTHER SOURCES 225,455,906        224,406,395        1,049,511           0% 283,470,000        

EXPENDITURES & OTHER USES

CURRENT EXPENDITURES

  Power Supply 176,108,397        189,727,255        (13,618,858)        -7% 234,330,000        75%

  Data Management 2,849,240           2,967,674           (118,434)             -4% 3,560,000           80%

  PG&E Fees 960,612              937,532              23,080                2% 1,120,000           86%

  Salaries & Benefits 2,734,501           3,482,014           (747,513)             -21% 4,300,000           64%

  Professional Services 1,266,992           1,841,973           (574,981)             -31% 2,290,000           55%

  Marketing & Promotions 290,523              699,845              (409,322)             -58% 910,000              32%

  Notifications 74,687                123,857              (49,170)               -40% 160,000              47%

  Lease 271,055              274,016              (2,961)                 -1% 330,000              82%

  General & Administrative 557,691              680,032              (122,341)             -18% 836,000              67%

TOTAL CURRENT EXPENDITURES 185,113,698        200,734,197        (15,620,499)        -8% 247,836,000        75%

OTHER USES

  Customer Programs 298,572              4,240,120           (3,941,548)          -93% 5,640,000           5%

  Office Equipment 19,919                155,556              (135,637)             -87% 200,000              10%

  Financial Security Requirement -                      -                      -                      0% 147,000              

  Refund of Bond -                      -                      -                      0% (100,000)             

TOTAL OTHER USES 318,491              4,395,676           (4,077,185)          -93% 5,887,000           5%

DEBT SERVICE

  Financing 125,096              90,000                35,096                39% 90,000                139%

  Interest -                      90,000                (90,000)               -100% 120,000              0%

TOTAL DEBT SERVICE 125,096              180,000              (54,904)               -31% 210,000              60%

Total Expenditures, Other Uses 

  & Debt Service 185,557,285        205,309,873        (19,752,588)        -10% 253,933,000        73%

Net Increase(Decrease) in Available

  Fund Balance 39,898,621$        19,096,522$        20,802,099$        109% 29,537,000$        

Variance

SILICON VALLEY CLEAN ENERGY

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

October 1, 2018 through July 31, 2019

Item 1c

July 2019 Treasurer Report



9 

 

  
 

Net Increase (decrease) in available fund balance

  per budgetary comparison schedule 39,898,621$        

Adjustments needed to reconcile to the changes

  in net position in the Statement of Revenues, 

  Expenses and Changes in Net Position

  Subtract depreciation expense (42,002)               

  Add back capital asset acquisitions 19,919                

Change in Net Position 39,876,538          

SILICON VALLEY CLEAN ENERGY AUTHORITY

BUDGET RECONCILIATION TO STATEMENT OF

REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

Item 1c

July 2019 Treasurer Report



10 

 

 October  November  December  January  February  March  April  May  June  July  August   YTD 

OPERATING REVENUES

    Electricity sales, net 26,013,308$   18,589,640$   20,295,540$   19,278,907$   17,206,905$   17,794,266$   18,251,186$   25,670,969$   30,086,479$   30,548,168$   223,735,368$ 

    Green electricity premium 76,005           66,459           67,567           73,924           61,034           69,967           71,198           80,664           100,923          119,028          786,769         

    Other income -                 -                     -                     -                     -                     -                 -                     -                     -                 -                 -                 

      Total operating revenues 26,089,313     18,656,099     20,363,107     19,352,831     17,267,939     17,864,233     18,322,384     25,751,633     30,187,402     30,667,196     -          -              224,522,137   

OPERATING EXPENSES

    Cost of electricity 17,160,575     16,892,744     17,551,069     23,433,656     16,893,908     12,980,824     12,768,605     17,052,324     21,078,947     20,295,745     176,108,397   

    Staff compensation and benefits 236,907          256,926          264,613          269,608          250,743          287,282          275,835          293,282          293,358          305,947          2,734,501       

    Data manager 301,479          300,856          301,200          301,385          301,626          302,227          303,253          153,148          291,172          292,894          2,849,240       

    Service fees - PG&E 94,279           94,000           94,377           94,000           99,753           94,263           94,613           99,147           99,475           96,705           960,612         

    Consultants and other professional fees 130,737          114,869          129,909          123,353          230,634          161,132          256,854          236,477          286,604          258,879          1,929,448       

    General and administration 99,316           70,743           74,028           73,621           106,969          117,599          78,370           60,525           60,359           88,542           830,072         

    Depreciation 4,179             4,179             4,335             4,393             3,969             4,160             4,130             4,219             4,219             4,219             42,002           

      Total operating expenses 18,027,472     17,734,317     18,419,531     24,300,016     17,887,602     13,947,487     13,781,660     17,899,122     22,114,134     21,342,931     -          -              185,454,272   

        Operating income (loss) 8,061,841       921,782          1,943,576       (4,947,185)      (619,663)        3,916,746       4,540,724       7,852,511       8,073,268       9,324,265       -       -          39,067,865     

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

    Interest income 30,474           30,758           58,997           128,308          96,180           109,063          108,802          115,167          122,271          133,749          933,769         

    Interest and related expense -                     -                     (55,856)          -                     -                     -                 -                     (50,608)          (9,316)            (9,316)            (125,096)        

      Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) 30,474           30,758           3,141             128,308          96,180           109,063          108,802          64,559           112,955          124,433          -          -              808,673         

CHANGE IN NET POSITION 8,092,315$     952,540$        1,946,717$     (4,818,877)$    (523,483)$       4,025,809$     4,649,526$     7,917,070$     8,186,223$     9,448,698$     -$     -$        39,876,538$   

SILICON VALLEY CLEAN ENERGY AUTHORITY

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES

AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

October 1, 2018 through July 31, 2019

Item 1c

July 2019 Treasurer Report



11 

  
 

 
 

Position Budget Actual Variance
Director of Account Services and Community Relations 1 1 0

Account Services Manager 1 1 0

Energy Consultant 2 1 1

Energy Associate 2 0 2

Communications Manager 1 1 0

Community Outreach Specialist 1 1 0

Communications Specialist 1 1 0

Board Clerk/Executive Assistant 1 1 0

Chief Executive Officer 1 1 0

Director of Finance and Administration 1 1 0

Administrative Services Manager 1 0 1

Management Analyst 1 1 0

Administrative Analyst 1 1 0

Administrative Assistant 1 1 0

Director of Power Resources 1 1 0

Power Resources Manager 1 1 0

Power Resources Planner 1 1 0

Power Settlements & Compliance Analyst 1 1 0

Manager of Regulatory and Legislative Affairs 1 1 0

Senior Regulatory Analyst 1 1 0

Director of Decarbonization and Grid Innovation Programs 1 1 0

Data Analyst 1 1 0

Analyst 1 1 0

Total* 25 21 4

HEADCOUNT

PERSONNEL REPORT FOR JULY 2019

Item 1c

July 2019 Treasurer Report



12 

 

YTD

Return on Investments Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Total

Money Market $30,474 $30,758 $58,997 $128,308 $96,180 $109,063 $108,802 $115,167 $122,271 $133,749 $0 $0 $933,769

Portfolio Invested

Average daily portfolio available to invest* 55,148,395 63,583,109 62,254,625  69,135,839 70,770,817 $71,496,022 71,216,494 74,309,263 76,499,135 81,955,494 

Average daily portfolio invested 20,154,823 20,185,339 35,700,846  60,277,386 60,380,303 $60,476,566 60,585,707 60,693,659 70,923,535 70,927,788 

% of average daily portfolio invested 36.5% 31.7% 57.3% 87.2% 85.3% 84.6% 85.1% 81.7% 92.7% 86.5%

Detail of Portfolio

Opening 

Rate %

Current Rate 

%

Carrying 

Value

Money Market - River City Bank 1.26% 2.23% $70,923,535

* Note:  Balance available to invest does not lockbox or debt serve reserve funds.

-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

SILICON VALLEY CLEAN ENERGY AUTHORITY

INVESTMENTS SUMMARY

October 1, 2018 through July 31, 2019

-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Item 1c

July 2019 Treasurer Report



13 

 

CUSTOMER ACCOUNTS 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Item 1c

July 2019 Treasurer Report



14 

WEATHER STATISTICS 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Item 1c

July 2019 Treasurer Report

COOLING DEGREE DAYS
200
180
160
140
120
100
80
60
40
20

Jan

Actual 15 Year Average

HEATING DEGREE DAYS
500
450llM400
350
300
250
200
150

00
50

Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun

15 Year Average
Jul Aug Sep

Actual



15 

 

Total 0-30 31-60 61-90 90-120* Over 120*

Accounts Receivable $26,573,048 $24,205,088 $694,764 $236,214 $193,874 $1,243,108

Period % 100% 91.1% 2.6% 0.9% 0.7% 4.7%

*Note:  A portion of accounts that are greater than 90 days old have been sent back to PG&E, however the receivable remains outstanding until PG&E

               writes the account off.

Days

SILICON VALLEY CLEAN ENERGY AUTHORITY

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE AGING REPORT

Item 1c

July 2019 Treasurer Report



 
 

 

 

Staff Report – Item 1d 

 

To: Silicon Valley Clean Energy Board of Directors 

From: Girish Balachandran, CEO 

Item 1d: SVCE 2018 Annual Power Source Disclosure Report Attestation 

Date: 9/11/2019 

 

  

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends that the Board approve the use of statistics reflected in SVCE’s 2018 annual Power Source 

Disclosure reports for purposes of preparing SVCE’s 2018 Power Content Label and endorse the accuracy of 

information presented in SVCE’s 2018 Power Source Disclosure report for GreenStart service.  

 

BACKGROUND 

California Public Utilities Code requires all retail sellers of electric energy, including SVCE, to disclose “accurate, 

reliable, and simple-to-understand information on the sources of energy” that are delivered to their respective 

customers.1 Applicable regulations direct retail sellers to provide such communications to customers following 

each year of operation.  The format for requisite communications is highly prescriptive, offering little flexibility 

to retail sellers when presenting such information to customers. This format has been termed the “Power Content 

Label” (or PCL) by the California Energy Commission (CEC).  Prior to distributing the PCL to its customers, SVCE 

annually submits a report regarding its specified power purchases to the CEC.  This report is a required element 

of California’s Power Source Disclosure Program (PSD Program) and was timely submitted to the CEC prior to 

the June 1st reporting deadline.  Both the aforementioned annual report and the PCL are required elements of 

California’s PSD Program, and information reflected in the annual report is contributory to the PCL (with the 

annual report’s power supply breakout being inserted in the PCL). 

 

Information presented in the PCL includes the proportionate share of total energy supply attributable to various 

resource types, including both renewable and conventional fuel sources.  SVCE’s Public Affairs team is in the 

process of designing the 2018 Power Content Label. 

 

ANALYSIS & DISCUSSION 

During the 2018 calendar year, SVCE successfully delivered a substantial portion of its electric energy supply 

from various renewable energy sources, including wind, solar, geothermal, hydroelectricity, biomass and 

biogas – for Green-Start customers, the percentage of supply attributable to renewable energy sources 

approximated 54 percent; for GreenPrime customers, renewable energy comprised 100 percent of the supply 

portfolio.   

 
Consistent with applicable regulations, SVCE will complete requisite customer communications following the 

Board’s approval of pertinent information to be included in the 2018 PCL.  Customers receiving PCL 

communications will include those enrolled in the SVCE program as of December 31, 2018 – the distribution list 

was derived based on prior discussions with designated CEC staff.  

 
1 California Public Utilities Code Section 398.1(b) Note: that Section (b)(1), as referenced in the excerpt from applicable 

PSD regulations, refers to the completion of annual independent audits. 

 

Item 1d

SILICON VALLEY
CLEAN ENERGY



Agenda Item: 1d Agenda Date: 9/11/2019 

 

 

 

  

SVCE’s GreenPrime retail service option is a Green-e Energy certified product, conforming to guidelines 
established by the Center for Resource Solutions, the Green-e Energy program administrator.  As part of this 
certification, SVCE must successfully complete an annual independent audit of power sources, ensuring the 
delivery of qualifying renewable energy to participating GreenPrime customers.  Such audits were timely 
completed, noting “no exceptions” in related audit reports. 

 

While preparing SVCE’s 2018 annual PSD report, staff performed a detailed review of all power purchases 

completed for the 2018 calendar year.  This review included an inventory of all renewable energy transfers 

within SVCE’s Western Renewable Energy Generation Information System (WREGIS) accounts, pertinent 

transaction records, and requisite independent audits for SVCE’s voluntary GreenPrime, 100% renewable 

energy program, which also provides 100% renewable energy to participating customers. Based on staff’s 

review of available data and findings of the independent auditor (related to the GreenPrime product offering), 

the information presented in the annual report was determined to be accurate.  Again, such information will 

be reflected in SVCE’s upcoming PCL for 2018 operations.  
 

To fulfill its obligations under the PSD Program, SVCE must also provide the CEC with an attestation of its 

Governing Board regarding the accuracy of information included in the PSD annual reports. 

 

Because SVCE’s GreenPrime product offering is independently audited (a process that was completed in June 

2019 for the 2018 operating year), SVCE is proceeding with self-certification of its annual report for the Green-

Start product offering, consistent with PSDP regulations.  Evidence of such attestation (for Green-Start) as well 

as the aforementioned audit report (for GreenPrime) must be provided to the CEC by October 1st.   

 

Should the Board endorse staff’s recommendation, a copy of this staff report, related meeting minutes and a 

copy of SVCE’s 2018 Audit Report for the GreenPrime product offering will be forwarded to the CEC, thereby 

completing SVCE’s obligations under the PSD Program for the 2018 calendar year. 

 

STRATEGIC PLAN 

As referenced in SVCE’s Strategic Plan, SVCE will use various channels and platforms to cultivate relationships 

with and bring customer value to all segments of the communities we serve. Complying with these regulations 

will increase customer trust and continue SVCE’s transparency.  

 

ALTERNATIVE 

Should the Board choose not to endorse the information provided for the power content label, staff will need 

to file an extension with the CEC and hire an auditor to review SVCE’s data for compliance. 

 

 

FISCAL IMPACT 

N/A 

 

 

ATTACHMENTS 

1. 2018 SVCE Power Content Label 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Item 1d



 
 

 

 

 

Item 1d
Attachment 1

SILICON VALLEY
CLEAN ENERGY

2018 POWER CONTENT LABEL
Silicon Valley Clean Energy

www.svcleanenergy.org

2018 CA
Power Mix**

ENERGY RESOURCES GreenPrime GreenStart

Eligible Renewable
Biomass & Biowaste
Geothermal
Eligible Hydroelectric
Solar
Wind

Coal
Large Hydroelectric
Natural Gas
Nuclear
Other
Unspecified sources of power*
TOTAL

100% 55% 31%
0% 1% 2%
0% 8% 5%
0% 3%> 2%

23% 12% 11%
77% 31% 11%

0% 0% 3%
0% 46% 11%
0% 0% 35%
0% 0% 9%
0% 0% <1%
0% 0% 11%

100% 100% 100%
* "Unspecified sources of power" means electricity from transactions that are not traceable to specific
generation sources.

** Percentages are estimated annually by the California Energy Commission based on the electricity
generated in California and net imports as reported to the Quarterly Fuel and Energy Report database
and the Power Source Disclosure program.

Silicon Valley Clean Energy

1-844-474-SVCE (7823)
For specific information about this

electricity product, contact:

For general information about the
Power Content Label, please visit: http:/ /www.energy.ca.gov/pci/

For additional questions, please
contact the California Energy

Commission at:

Toll-tree in California: 844-454-2906
Outside California: 916-653-0237



 

Page 1 of 2 

 

 

 

Staff Report – Item 1e 

 

To: Silicon Valley Clean Energy Board of Directors 

From: Girish Balachandran, CEO 

Item 1e: Approve Renewal of $35 million Line of Credit with River City Bank  

Date: 9/11/2019 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION  

Staff recommends the Board approve Silicon Valley Clean Energy (SVCE) to renew the $35 million line of 

credit for two years with River City Bank (RCB). 

 

FINANCE AND ADMINISTRATION COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION 

The Finance and Administration committee, with two members absent, met September 3, 2019 and were 

unanimous in recommending the Board approve renewing the $35 million line of credit with River City Bank 

for two years. 

 

BACKGROUND 

The Board approved the establishment of a $20 million line of credit with RCB in September 2019.  In 

response to Pacific Gas & Electric’s (PG&E) bankruptcy announcement, the Board approved expansion of the 

current line of credit to $35 million.  The current credit agreement will expire on October 20, 2020. 

 

ANALYSIS & DISCUSSION 

Having access to external liquidity to supplement SVCE’s balance sheet will provide time for SVCE to react 

with its locally controlled rate setting and to implement other mitigation strategies.  The line of credit will be 

advantageous for future negotiations of power supply and may help avoid SVCE having to post collateral to 

suppliers that are not agreeable to the lockbox credit structure due to the PG&E bankruptcy.   

 

A line of credit is viewed positively by the credit rating agencies with SVCE pursuing a credit rating in Fiscal 

Year 2019-20. 

 

Highlights of the credit agreement include: 

• Duration of 2 years with an expiration date of October 21,2021.  The longer duration reduces legal 

and administrative costs compared to an annual renewal.  

• Minimum Tangible Net Position Covenant of $100,000,000 (current agreement is $75,000,000). 

• There are no early termination fees. 

• Financial reports sent to RCB quarterly (current agreement is monthly). 

• Interest expense for draws against the line of credit is 175 basis points plus 1-month LIBOR (same as 

current agreement).  The current 1-month LIBOR rate is 2.09%. 

 

STRATEGIC PLAN 

The recommendation supports the Fiscal and Power Procurement goals of the strategic plan. 

 

 

 

Item 1e

SILICON VALLEY
CLEAN ENERGY



Agenda Item: 1e Agenda Date: 9/11/2019 

 

Page 2 of 2 

ALTERNATIVE 

Staff is open to suggestions from the committee regarding the renewal of a line of credit. 

 

FISCAL IMPACT 

An annual fee of $87,500 and a Non-Utilization fee of 0.15% to be assessed annual on the unused portion of 

the line of credit (maximum of $52,500). 

 

ATTACHMENTS 

1. Credit Agreement with River City Bank 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Item 1e



 

{2719435.DOCX;2} Draft 09- 30- 16 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
CREDIT AGREEMENT  

 
Dated as of October 22, 2019 

 
by and between 

 
SILICON VALLEY CLEAN ENERGY AUTHORITY , 

as Borrower 
 

and 
 

RIVER CITY BANK,  
as Lender 

 
 
 
 
 

Loan No. 5084548931 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

Item 1e
Attachment 1



 

{2719435.DOCX;2} -1-  

CREDIT AGREEMENT  
 
This CREDIT AGREEMENT (this �³Agreement�´) is entered into as of October 22, 2019, 

by and between SILICON VALLEY CLEAN ENERGY AUTHORITY , a public agency 
formed under the provisions of the Joint Exercise of Powers Act of the State of California, 
Government Code Section 6500 et. seq. (�³Borrower�´), and RIVER CITY BANK , a California 
corporation (�³Lender�´). 

 
W I T N E S S E T H: 

 
WHEREAS, Borrower has requested, and Lender has agreed to make available to 

Borrower, a credit facility which includes a revolving line of credit upon and subject to the terms 
and conditions set forth in this Agreement; 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual agreements, provisions and 

covenants contained herein, the parties agree as follows: 
 

SECTION 1. DEFINITIONS AND INTERPRETATION. 
 
Section 1.1.  Definitions.  All capitalized terms used in this Agreement and not otherwise 

defined have the meanings ascribed to them on Exhibit A .     
 
Section 1.2.  Other Interpretive Provisions. 
 
(a) Defined Terms.  Unless otherwise specified herein or therein, all terms defined in 

this Agreement will have the same defined meanings when used in any certificate or other 
document made or delivered pursuant hereto.  The meaning of defined terms is equally 
applicable to the singular and plural forms of the defined terms. 

 
(b) References.  The words �³hereof� ,́ �³herein� ,́ �³hereunder�  ́and words of similar 

import when used in this Agreement will refer to this Agreement as a whole and not to any 
particular provision of this Agreement; and subsection, section, schedule and exhibit references 
are to this Agreement unless otherwise specified. 

 
(c) Certain Common Terms.  The term �³documents�  ́includes any and all instruments, 

documents, agreements, certificates, indentures, notices and other writings, however evidenced.  
The term �³including�  ́is not limiting and means �³including without limitation.�  ́

 
(d) Performance; Time.  Whenever any performance obligation hereunder is stated to 

be due or required to be satisfied on a day other than a Business Day, such performance may be 
made or satisfied on the next succeeding Business Day.  In the computation of periods of time 
from a specified date to a later specified date, the word �³from�  ́means �³from and including� ;́ the 
words �³to�  ́and �³until�  ́each mean �³to but excluding� ,́ and the word �³through�  ́means �³to and 
including.�  ́ If any provision of this Agreement refers to any action taken or to be taken by any 
Person, or which such Person is prohibited from taking, such provision will be interpreted to 
encompass any and all means, direct or indirect, of taking, or not taking, such action. 

Item 1e
Attachment 1
























































































